
Coopersville Area District Library 
Monthly Board Meeting 
Date: March 20, 2024  
Time: 7:00 pm  
Place: 333 Ottawa Street, Coopersville MI 49404 

AGENDA
1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Agenda

3. Approval of the Minutes

4. Public Comment:

5. Board Development:

6. Financial Reports

A. March Operations: Balance Sheets & Budget vs. Actual
B. Approve February expenditures, including ACH transactions

#20944-20960 totaling $35,681.85
C. Approve March checks to date, including ACH transactions

#20961-20974 totaling $20,944.77
D. Statement of Income
E. VISA Reconciliation Detail
F. CADL Building Fund Budget Performance
G. Coopersville Area Community Foundation Fund Requests
H. Constantine Service Agreement
I. Cummins Oil Sampling Results

7. Correspondence/Marketing
A. CADL Press Releases
B. April Calendar of Events
C. Programming Flyers

8. Director’s Report –
A. Solar Panel Information
B. Friends Meeting Minutes

9. Committee Reports:

10. Unfinished Business

11. New Business
A. CoMerica Account Recommendation

12. Public/board Comments:
13. Next Meeting: Board meeting April 17, 2024 at 7pm

(MOTION TO APPROVE) 

(MOTION TO APPROVE) 

(MOTION TO RECEIVE & FILE) 

(MOTION TO APPROVE) 

  (MOTION TO APPROVE) 

(MOTION TO RECEIVE & FILE) 
(MOTION TO RECEIVE & FILE) 
(MOTION TO RECEIVE & FILE) 
(MOTION TO APPROVE) 
(MOTION TO RECEIVE & FILE) 
(MOTION TO RECEIVE & FILE) 

(MOTION TO RECEIVE & FILE) 

(MOTION TO APPROVE) 

(MOTION TO APPROVE) 

(MOTION TO APPROVE) 

Page 1

p. 1

p.2-3

o.4-6

p.7

p. 8
p.9

p.10-11
p.12

p.13-16
p. 17
p. 18-20

p. 21-23

p 24-32

(not yet available)

p. 33



Coopersville Area District Library 
333 Ottawa Street 

Coopersville, MI 49404 

Minutes from the Board Meeting on February 21, 2024. 
Call to Order: President Sue Boomgaard-Rasch called the meeting to order at 6:58 p.m.   
Members Present: Sue Boomgaard-Rasch, Pat Lindberg, Greg Dunn, Bob TerAvest, Roland 
DeVries, Stephanie Mayrose, Kathi Waldecker, Norine Fox 
Staff Present: Elyshia Hoekstra/Director, Kim Lothschutz/Bookkeeper 
Absent: None 
M/S (R. DeVries, K. Waldecker) to approve 2/21/2024 agenda (Page 1). Motion carried. 
M/S (R. DeVries, P. Lindberg) to approve 1/17/2024 minutes (Pages 2-3). Motion carried. 

Public Present/Comments: None 

Board Development: 
Audit Presentation – Ian Rees with Gabridge & Co. 

Ian Rees distributed copies of the 2023 audit report and reviewed its highlights.  CADL 
received a “clean” audit and passed.  The audit report was submitted to the state. 

Financial Reports: 

A. M/S (B. TerAvest, R. DeVries) to receive and file February Operations: Balance
Sheets & Budget vs. Actual (Pages 4-6). Motion carried.

B. M/S (R. DeVries, B. TerAvest) to approve January expenditures, including ACH
transactions #20912-20932 totaling $17,342.67 (Page 7). Motion carried.an

C. M/S (B.TerAvest, P. Lindberg) to approve February checks to date #20933-20943
totaling $17,102.88 (Page 8). Motion carried.

D. M/S (K. Waldecker, R. DeVries) to receive and file Statement of Income and CADL
Building Fund Budget Performance (Pages 9-11). Motion carried.

E. M/S (B. TerAvest, R.DeVries) to receive and file Visa Reconciliation Detail (Page 12-
13). Motion carried.

F. M/S (K. Waldecker, P. Lindberg) to receive and file Coopersville Area Community
Foundation Statements (Pages 14-18). Motion carried.

Correspondence/Marketing – Pages 19-22 
M/S (S. Mayrose, K. Waldecker) to receive and file Correspondence and Marketing (Pages 
19-22). Motion carried.
A. CADL Press Releases
B. March Calendar of Events
C. Programming Flyers

The library will have a more passive participation in the Quilt Show this year. Quilts will 
be displayed in the community room and an adult quilt craft night may be scheduled. 

Page 2



Director’s Report – Pages 23-27 
M/S (B. TerAvest, R. DeVries) to receive and file Director’s Report (Pages 23-27). Motion 
carried. 

Elyshia shared that 75  “1,000 Books by Kindergarten!” t-shirts have been ordered since 
many young readers are completing the reading challenge. Library is adding to Hoopla and may 
change from 6 checkouts to 5 in order to provide more people access but to fewer books. Elyshia 
is looking into applying for a solar grant. 

A. Friends Meeting Minutes – Page 27

Committee Reports: None 

Unfinished Business: 

A. M/S (R. DeVries, S. Mayrose) to approve Windmill Plumbing Updated Plumbing
Quote which is $1,000.00 more than original quote (Page 28). Motion carried.

Quote increased because of a hidden concrete slab which caused a rerouting of 
the new sump pump line to the detention pond. 

B. Retention Pond Quote – Page 29 – Discussion
M/S (R. DeVries, G. Dunn) to approve AWM Water Features Quote of $1,475.00 for
Detention Pond Mowing and Drain Maintenance (Page 29). Motion carried.

C. M/S (P. Lindberg, S. Boomgaaard-Rasch) to approve PTO Policy Revision (Lawyer
Review). Motion carried.

New Business: 

M/S (B. TerAvest, N. Fox) to approve Window and Gutter Cleaning Quote (Page 30). Motion 
carried. 

Public/Board Comments: None 

Adjournment: 8:22 p.m. 

Next Meeting: Board Meeting March 20, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 3



COOPERSVILLE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY
Balance Sheet

As of March 11, 2024

Accrual Basis  Monday, March 11, 2024 10:41 AM GMT-04:00   1/2

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

101-001 Choice One - Checking 202,197.14

101-002 CoMerica Savings Account 57,226.25

101-003 ICS-FDIC Savings 194,142.43

101-004 Building Debt Fund 151,084.76

101-005 Murray CD 13,846.48

101-006 Capital Fund 33,017.46

Total Bank Accounts $651,514.52

Accounts Receivable

101-018 Accounts Receivable 866.94

Total Accounts Receivable $866.94

Other Current Assets

101-019 Accounts Receivable, other 0.00

1499 Undeposited Funds 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $0.00

Total Current Assets $652,381.46

TOTAL ASSETS $652,381.46

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

101-202 Accounts Payable 2,081.25

202-2 Auditor Accounts Payable 511.74

Total 101-202 Accounts Payable 2,592.99

Total Accounts Payable $2,592.99

Credit Cards

101-211 VISA 1,618.33

Total Credit Cards $1,618.33

Other Current Liabilities

101-206 Accounts Payable, other 0.00

101-258 Payroll Liabilities 2,952.71

Alerus Retirement -133.95

Alerus Retirement 201.16

Page 4



COOPERSVILLE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY
Balance Sheet

As of March 11, 2024

Accrual Basis  Monday, March 11, 2024 10:41 AM GMT-04:00   2/2

TOTAL

Total Alerus Retirement 67.21

Federal Taxes (941/943/944) 1,359.65

Health Insurance-20% of premium 38.45

MI Income Tax 1,299.43

MI Local Tax 53.61

Muskegon City Estra Tax 100.00

Total 101-258 Payroll Liabilities 5,871.06

101-259 Due to Other Funds 0.00

2110 Direct Deposit Liabilities 0.00

241 Due to Murray Trust 0.00

Direct Deposit Payable 0.00

PPP-3 Unearned Federal PPP Loan 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $5,871.06

Total Current Liabilities $10,082.38

Total Liabilities $10,082.38

Equity

101-370 Committed Fund Balance 250,000.00

3000 Opening Bal Equity 239,288.14

3900 Retained Earnings 4,999.28

Net Income 148,011.66

Total Equity $642,299.08

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $652,381.46

Page 5



COOPERSVILLE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY
Operations Profit & Loss - Budget vs Actual Report

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Monday, March 11, 2024 10:54 AM GMT-04:00   1/1

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Income

101-401 Property Taxes 280,816.07 335,350.00 -54,533.93 83.74 %

101-539 State 14,070.74 30,500.00 -16,429.26 46.13 %

101-580 Local Grants 5,150.25 12,250.00 -7,099.75 42.04 %

101-600 Charges for Services 3,332.54 4,520.00 -1,187.46 73.73 %

101-655 Fines & Forteitures 3,710.24 42,200.00 -38,489.76 8.79 %

101-664 Investment Earnings 5,168.25 800.00 4,368.25 646.03 %

101-672 Other Revenue 1,919.43 3,600.00 -1,680.57 53.32 %

101-690 Other Financing Sources 232.64 58,700.00 -58,467.36 0.40 %

Total Income $314,400.16 $487,920.00 $ -173,519.84 64.44 %

GROSS PROFIT $314,400.16 $487,920.00 $ -173,519.84 64.44 %

Expenses

101-701 Personnel Services 162,221.70 309,355.00 -147,133.30 52.44 %

101-726 Supplies 6,744.19 8,050.00 -1,305.81 83.78 %

101-800 Other Services & Charges 49,428.43 93,190.00 -43,761.57 53.04 %

101-970 Capital Outlay 34,935.93 60,300.00 -25,364.07 57.94 %

Total Expenses $253,330.25 $470,895.00 $ -217,564.75 53.80 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $61,069.91 $17,025.00 $44,044.91 358.71 %

NET INCOME $61,069.91 $17,025.00 $44,044.91 358.71 %

Page 6



02/05/2024 240205P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $38.46

02/07/2024 TAX WRIGHT TOWNSHIP COOPERSVILLE LIBRARY CCD $24,901.78

02/08/2024 240208P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $53.39

02/08/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT - Murray CD $5,146.12

02/09/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT $78.98

02/12/2024 240212P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $4.77

02/12/2024 Tax Monies $21,927.85

02/12/2024 240212P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $7.69

02/14/2024 240214P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $0.87

02/15/2024 240215P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $5.74

02/16/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT $110.79

02/20/2024 240219P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $38.86

02/21/2024 LGIP MCLA0513 COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST CCD $6,692.31

02/22/2024 240222P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $31.07

02/22/2024 Property Taxes $9,517.31

02/23/2024 TAX WRIGHT TOWNSHIP COOPERSVILLE LIBRARY CCD $31,074.91

02/23/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT $118.60

02/26/2024 240226P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $11.39

02/26/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT $28,032.65

02/27/2024 240227P2 SQUARE INC COOPERSVILLE AREA DIST PPD $2.43

02/27/2024 TAX WRIGHT TOWNSHIP COOPERSVILLE LIBRARY CCD $147.41

02/28/2024 INTEREST DEPOSIT $117.07

02/29/2024 INTEREST DEPOSIT $5.11

02/29/2024 ACH MERS -$1,545.00

02/23/2024 ACH ACH FILE ALERUS RETIREMEN 659568COOPERSVILLE DIS CCD -$133.95

02/21/2024 Payroll Pay Period: 02/04/2024-02/17/2024 -$5,593.59

02/15/2024 Transfer FUNDING CD 10622 -$13,846.48

02/29/2024 Transfer January & February 2024 Bond Payments -$6,290.13

02/12/2024 20944 Baker & Taylor -$1,741.59

02/12/2024 20945 Heimler Consulting -$462.49

02/12/2024 20946 ADT Commericial -$84.42

02/12/2024 20947 Unique Management Services -$9.85

02/12/2024 20949 Streamline -$1,500.00

02/12/2024 20950 Visa -$2,188.71

02/19/2024 20951 AWM Water Features -$90.00

02/19/2024 20952 Shannon Donley -$14.41

02/19/2024 20953 Cengage Learning -$172.44

02/19/2024 20954 DHE Plumbing and Mechanical -$25.00

02/19/2024 20955 Michigan Gas Utilities -$274.94

02/19/2024 20956 Spoon Man Inc. -$100.00

02/26/2024 20957 Allthread Ink -$582.50

02/29/2024 20958 Constantine Irrigation Inc. -$494.00

02/29/2024 20959 U.S. Bank Equipment Finance -$272.60

02/29/2024 20960 Muskegon Fire Equipment -$419.75

$92,223.71

General Checking Detail    February 20th - 29th, 2024Page 7



Date Num Name Amount

03/01/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT 6.72 

03/01/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT 138.55 

03/04/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT 6.33 

03/05/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT 73.97 

03/06/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT 12.46 

03/07/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT 56.15 

03/08/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT 13.93 

03/08/2024 DEPOSIT/CREDIT 186.52 

03/06/2024 Payroll (5,704.89)

03/01/2024 Priority Health (416.53)

03/04/2024 IRS (2,767.78)

03/08/2024 20961 DellyBelly Bakery (71.99)

03/01/2024 20962 Visa (3,215.00)

03/04/2024 20963 Shine of Holland (1,135.00)

03/04/2024 20964 Consumers Energy (940.03)

03/04/2024 20965 Midwest Tape- Hoopla (675.00)

03/04/2024 20966 Midwest Tape (39.99)

03/04/2024 20967 New Views LLC (801.66)

03/04/2024 20968 AcenTek ascending Technology (16.80)

03/04/2024 20969 Sanilac Computer Products (220.00)

03/07/2024 20970 Baker & Taylor (1,181.12)

03/07/2024 20971 OverDrive (6.76)

03/18/2024 20972 T-Mobile (287.00)

03/11/2024 20973 Unique Management Services (9.85)

03/11/2024 20974 Windmill Plumbing (3,950.00)

(20,944.77)

General Operations Checking Account
March 1st - 11th, 2024

Page 8



Coopersville Area District Library
Statement of Financial Income

July 2023 - June 2024

  Monday, March 11, 2024 10:47 AM GMT-04:00   1/1

1-GENERAL OPERATIONS 2-DEBT SERVICE PAYMENT 3-CAPITAL PROJECTS MURRAY FUND CD TOTAL

Income

101-401 Property Taxes 280,816.07 126,588.69 0.00 0.00 $407,404.76

101-539 State 14,260.74 2,248.61 0.00 0.00 $16,509.35

101-580 Local Grants 5,763.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 $5,763.25

101-600 Charges for Services 3,342.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 $3,342.39

101-655 Fines & Forteitures 3,710.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 $3,710.24

101-664 Investment Earnings 5,168.25 489.44 19.42 145.36 $5,822.47

101-672 Other Revenue 3,629.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 $3,629.43

101-690 Other Financing Sources 11,264.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 $11,264.05

Services 856.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 $856.99

Total Income $328,811.41 $129,326.74 $19.42 $145.36 $458,302.93

GROSS PROFIT $328,811.41 $129,326.74 $19.42 $145.36 $458,302.93

Expenses

Total Expenses $0.00

NET OPERATING INCOME $328,811.41 $129,326.74 $19.42 $145.36 $458,302.93

NET INCOME $328,811.41 $129,326.74 $19.42 $145.36 $458,302.93

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



COOPERSVILLE AREA DISTRICT LIBRARY
Building Fund Profit & Loss - Budget vs Actual Report

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Monday, March 11, 2024 10:57 AM GMT-04:00   1/1

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Income

101-401 Property Taxes 126,588.69 131,500.00 -4,911.31 96.27 %

101-664 Investment Earnings 489.44 400.00 89.44 122.36 %

Total Income $127,078.13 $131,900.00 $ -4,821.87 96.34 %

GROSS PROFIT $127,078.13 $131,900.00 $ -4,821.87 96.34 %

Expenses

101-800 Other Services & Charges 500.00 10.00 490.00 5,000.00 %

Total Expenses $500.00 $10.00 $490.00 5,000.00 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $126,578.13 $131,890.00 $ -5,311.87 95.97 %

NET INCOME $126,578.13 $131,890.00 $ -5,311.87 95.97 %

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Lubricant Analysis Report
North America: +1-866-211-7420

Overall report severity based on comments.

Account Information
Account Number: CUMDBU-0103-1540
Company Name: COOPERSVILLE DISTRICT

LIBRARY
Contact: ELYSHHIA HOEKSTRA
Address: 333 OTTAWA ST

COOPERSVILLE
Phone Number: 616-837-6809

Component Information
Component ID: F170197518 E

Secondary ID: C100NG GG06-1750031
CENTER

Component Type: NATURAL GAS ENGINE
Manufacturer: CUMMINS

Model: QSJ5.9G
Application: POWER GENERATION

Sump Capacity:

Sample Information
Tracking Number: 24025F26709

Lab Number: I-893033
Lab Location: Indianapolis
Data Analyst: QWS

Sampled: 13-Feb-2024
Received: 21-Feb-2024

Completed: 22-Feb-2024

Filter Information
Filter Type: Information Requested

Micron Rating: 0

Miscellaneous Information
Miscellaneous: CSSNAS3-60136

Product Information
Product Manufacturer: VALVOLINE

Product Name: PREMIUM BLUE ONE
SOLUTION GEN2

Viscosity Grade: SAE 15W40
Comments Flagged data does not indicate an immediate need for maintenance action. Continue to observe the trend and monitor equipment and

fluid conditions. Manganese sources in engines include manganese/bronze valve guides and/or a fuel additive; Please provide this units
sump capacity with next sample. Lubricant and filter change acknowledged.

Wear Metals (ppm)
Contaminant
Metals (ppm) Multi-Source Metals (ppm) Additive Metals (ppm)

Sa
m

pl
e 

#

Ir
on

Ch
ro

m
iu

m

N
ic

ke
l

Al
um

in
um

Co
pp

er

Le
ad

Ti
n

Ca
dm

iu
m

Si
lv

er

Va
na

di
um

Si
lic

on

So
di

um

Po
ta

ss
iu

m

Ti
ta

ni
um

M
ol

yb
de

nu
m

An
tim

on
y

M
an

ga
ne

se

Li
th

iu
m

Bo
ro

n

M
ag

ne
si

um

Ca
lc

iu
m

Ba
riu

m

Ph
os

ph
or

us

Zi
nc

1 21 5 0 2 42 5 0 0 0 0 84 14 0 0 133 0 245 1 121 8 2131 6 800 870
2 12 3 1 2 23 4 0 0 0 0 48 10 0 0 92 0 129 0 83 402 1627 4 726 837
3 13 3 0 1 23 4 0 0 0 0 49 7 2 0 94 1 127 0 81 426 1717 4 755 862
4 5 1 0 2 2 2 0 0 0 0 14 8 0 0 53 0 11 0 56 854 1289 0 816 919

Sample Information Contaminants Fluid Properties

Sa
m

pl
e 

#

D
at

e 
Sa

m
pl

ed

D
at

e 
 R

ec
ei

ve
d

Lu
be

 T
im

e

h

U
ni

t T
im

e

h Lu
be

 C
ha

ng
e

Lu
be

Ad
de

d

gal Fi
lte

r C
ha

ng
e

Fu
el

D
ilu

tio
n

%

So
ot

%

W
at

er

%

Vi
sc

os
ity

40
°C

cSt

Vi
sc

os
ity

10
0 

°C

cSt
Ac

id
N

um
be

r
mg

KOH / g

Ba
se

 N
o.

D
47

39

mg
KOH / g

O
xi

da
tio

n

abs /
cm

N
itr

at
io

n

abs /
0.1mm

1 24-Feb-2022 09-Mar-2022 42 42 Yes 0 Yes <.1 - FTIR 12.7 6 5
2 07-Oct-2022 12-Oct-2022 4 46 No 0 No <.1 - FTIR 13.1 10 6
3 01-Mar-2023 08-Mar-2023 0 50 Yes 0 Yes <.1 - FTIR 13.4 1.80 10 5
4 13-Feb-2024 21-Feb-2024 2 56 Yes 0 Yes <.1 - FTIR 14.2 1.21 13 7

Particle Count (particles/mL) Additional Testing

Sa
m

pl
e 

#

IS
O

 C
od

e

Based On
4/6/14

>
4

particles /
mL

>
6

particles /
mL

>
10

particles /
mL

>
14

particles /
mL

>
21

particles /
mL

>
38

particles /
mL

>
70

particles /
mL

>
10

0

particles /
mL

Te
st

 M
et

ho
d

1 /  /
2 /  /
3 /  /
4 /  /

Comments are advisory only and are based on the assumption that the sample and data submitted are valid. Results relate only to the items tested. Missing fluid or component information limits the
evaluation. No warranty is expressed or implied. Measurement uncertainty available upon request.

Page 18

https://www.eoilreports.com//testPopUps/iso-cleanliness.html
https://www.eoilreports.com//testPopUps/iso-cleanliness.html
https://www.eoilreports.com//testPopUps/iso-cleanliness.html
https://www.eoilreports.com//testPopUps/iso-cleanliness.html
https://www.eoilreports.com//testPopUps/iso-cleanliness.html
https://www.eoilreports.com//testPopUps/iso-cleanliness.html
https://www.eoilreports.com//testPopUps/iso-cleanliness.html
https://www.eoilreports.com//testPopUps/iso-cleanliness.html


I-893033 F170197518 E CUMDBU-0103-1540 COOPERSVILLE DISTRICT LIBRARY Page 2
Historical
Comments

1

Check air induction system (filters, housings, air intake, etc.) for source of abrasives (dirt). Abrasives (Silicon) are at a SIGNIFICANT
LEVEL; Chrome is at a MODERATE LEVEL and is possibly coming from piston ring plating; Copper is at a MINOR LEVEL; Bushing/thrust
metal and/or most of the copper may be coming from lube cooler (as applicable); Manganese sources in engines include
manganese/bronze valve guides and/or a fuel additive; Please provide COMPONENT MODEL number to compare data to the correct
standards for this component. Please provide missing FLUID PRODUCT NAME to compare data to the correct standards. Please
provide this units sump capacity with next sample. Lubricant and filter change acknowledged. Resample at half interval.

2

Flagged data may be 'wear-in' or contamination from overhauled or new unit; Silicon/Dirt may be present due to new unit
contamination; Chrome is possibly coming from ring plating; Flagged additive levels are different than what should be present for the
identified lubricant. This may have been topped off with a different lubricant, the fluid may be misidentified, or a different lubricant or
formulation may have been in use prior to a recent change. Please provide this units sump capacity with next sample.

3

Flagged data does not indicate an immediate need for maintenance action. Continue to observe the trend and monitor equipment
and fluid conditions. Silicon is at a MODERATE LEVEL; SILICON sources can be abrasives (dirt, Alumina Silica), seals and gasket
material, lube additive or lube supplement, and/or environmental contaminant; Chrome is at a MINOR LEVEL and is possibly coming
from piston ring plating. Manganese sources in engines include manganese/bronze valve guides and/or a fuel additive; Flagged
additive levels are different than what should be present for the identified lubricant. This may have been topped off with a different
lubricant, the fluid may be misidentified, or a different lubricant or formulation may have been in use prior to a recent change. Please
provide this units sump capacity with next sample. Lubricant and filter change acknowledged.

Page 19



I-893033 F170197518 E CUMDBU-0103-1540 COOPERSVILLE DISTRICT LIBRARY Page 3
Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Coopersville Area District Library 
Directors Report for March 2024 – Elyshia Hoekstra 

I. Building
a. Sump Pump – The sump pump install was completed March 5, inspected March 6, and is good to go.

Install went fairly smoothly except the inspector coming earlier than expected, so they had to wait to
bury the line until he could come back the next day. Other than that, while it was a whole day process, it
went (loud) but smoothly. Everything looks good and hopefully this concludes the majority of the
problems we’ve had related to the basement as long as we keep up on the annual cleanout. I plan to
schedule that for late summer/early fall.

b. Solar Energy Quote/Grant – I’d like to continue to pursue the solar energy grant with Ebsco. I’ve had
many of my questions answered and still feel that this project may benefit us in many ways. I’ve included
a few pages of the full quote at the end of my board packet and supplied the full quote as a supplement
that I emailed out (in order to keep the packet shorter). It would be an $81,000 investment which the
grant, if we were to receive it, would pay 100% of the cost. It would take 13 years to see the full payback
on that investment (if we were to be funding it entirely on its own). However, as to consumption, we
would be looking at a 49% energy offset. In some months, we could potential see our bill cut in half.
With your go ahead, I’d like to pursue the grant and see where it might lead us. There is no obligation,
as far as I am able to determine, to begin the process before the grant is received so we shouldn’t be
financially out anything if we don’t get the grant.

II. Financials
a. Murray CDs – Our new CD is set up at Choice One for $13,846.48.
b. Savings Account at CoMerica – I’ve been doing some research on rates and types of accounts. I’ve

reached out to several banks and the best rates for business right now are with Consumer’s Credit
Union. Choice One has done well for us in the last year or so, but we don’t want to put all our money in
one basket. We’ve looked at rates at Bloom, but they don’t seem to be very competitive right now. We
expanded the radius of our search to Allendale and Standale area as they are still fairly close. I’m
surprised at how much the rates varied across the board, but I am recommending that we do a 12-
month CD at Consumer’s Credit Union.

c. FOIA – We’ve gotten our yearly FOIA from a company that FOIA’s most governmental entities every
year. Usually they ask for salaries of employees and little else, but this year they also asked for our check
register for the year. We provided the information they asked for and sent it on its way.

III. Technology –
a. Streamline Website – This is moving much faster than expected. We are looking at a roll out date of

March 29. They were able to port everything over quickly and we are making design changes, etc. We
are looking what we currently have and making intentional decisions about what people see first, how
they see it, and whether it is intuitive to find the information they need or not. I have to say that it has
actually been a fairly fun process. I did find out that one of the features that costs extra money is a
second portal. We have one portal that comes with our subscription. I made the decision to go with the
staff portal first. I’m going to evaluate the value in that portal first and then we’ll consider whether there
is a need for the investment in a board portal as well. Some things are already available on our new
website for your convenience as well, including old board packets, audits, budgets, etc.

b. Cyber Insurance Training – I am currently discussing with Nick about a time to set this up. He has
volunteered to do some training with us on this. We are taking care of the staff training first, then we
will talk about the possibility of doing one for the public.

IV. Programs

Page 24



a. Eclipse Maker Monday – Monday, March 25, we’ll be doing a special Maker Monday, highlighting the 
eclipse. Following the program, we’ll begin giving out classes (1 pair for every 2 people) up until the 
Monday before the eclipse. If at that point, we still have pairs remaining, we will allow people to take 
additional pairs until they are all gone. The eclipse will take place April 9, and it will be most likely at its 
peak around 3:10-3:11. 

b. Special TAB Story Time – Tuesday, April 2, we are going to have a special story time. A few of our Teen 
Advisory Committee members have volunteered to read to the kids over Spring Break. We weren’t able 
to make it happen during March is reading month because the kids would have been in school so we 
decided to bump it into April. We think this is a great way for the older kids to foster the love of reading 
in the young kids by modeling reading in this way. 

c. Movie matinee – On Wednesday, April 3, instead of holding our usual Music and Movement, we are 
showing the movie Wish twice throughout the day – 10am and 2pm.  

V. Staffing 
a. Shannon Donley has given us notice. She’s taken another position that allows for more growth than 

she’d be able to get here. We wish her well on her next adventure, and in the meantime, I posted her 
position on March 15. I plan to run the position through March 29th and I hope to begin interviews the 
following week. We most likely will not have someone in place before Shannon leaves us after Spring 
Break week, but I hope to have a new candidate secured by then. We may have to pause programming 
for our youngest patrons during that transition time. 

VI. Strategic Plan 
a. Focus Groups are scheduled for March 16, 18, and 21st. We have a good sampling of the community, I 

hope, so I’m looking forward to some great responses. After that, Carol and I will discuss the results, the 
need (if any) for further focus groups, and presentation of the overall results to the board and then 
ultimately to the community. 

VII. Friends 
a. The Friend met on March 13 at 1pm. If their minutes are available at the time of the meeting, I will 

include those. 
VIII. Library and other news 

Our new library app is set to go live on April 23. This is about a month longer than was originally planned. 
We just needed a little more time to get information uploaded on the backend and to test some additional 
things before they can be pushed out to the public.   
 

IX. Statistics – See attached 
a. We did have about a week where one of our cameras was not picking up a count for the people counter. 

We tried a couple of things to fix it, but since we get the reports once a day, it did take us awhile to 
figure out the problem. If the same issue were to happen, we know right away what to do, but in the 
meantime, the number is pretty low this month because we are missing about a week’s worth of stats. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 25



 
February Statistics 

 

 

2/1/2024 2/1/2023 Current YR Last Yr  

Circulation
Current Yr Last Yr

% 
Change 

2023-2024 
YTD

2022 -2023 
YTD

% 
Change

Items checked out at CADL 3,125          3,552         -12% 29,131        29,776       -2%
OverDrive E-Book circulation 1,413          1,275         11% 11,086        10,120       10%
E-Magazines 229             117            96% 1,858          729            155%
Hoopla 331             393            -16% 2,708          3,163         -14%
Items Loaned to other libraries 522             451            16% 3,580          3,250         10%
Renewals 1,793          1,920         -7% 18,434        18,226       1%
  Total Circulation 7,413          7,708         -4% 66,797        63,107       6%
Library Patrons
Patrons getting 1st library card 28               27              4% 232 276 -16%
Registered CADL Patrons 4,373          4,396         -1% 4,373          4,396         -1%
Library Collection
*Items Added: 14,158        29,169      -51% 36050 248133 -85%
Items Withdrawn 493             14              3421% 1513 360 -320%
Total Items owned 516,195     1,365,865 -62% 516,195     1,365,865 -62%
Interlibrary Loans
Items Loaned to other libraries 522             451            100% 3,580          3,229         11%
Borrowed- LLC + Mel 570             577            100% 4,251          3,894         9%
Traffic Count
Library Visits 2,153          4,447         -52% 21,766        24,832       -12%
Programming & Services
Open Hours 178             169            6% 1,422          1,418         0%
Children's Program Attendance 178 260 -32% 1,525          1,067         43%
Program Attendance Total 183 346 -47% 1,836          1,350         36%
Number of Monthly Programs 22 21 5% 188             143            31%
Ancestry Plus 63               68              -7% 106             536            -80%
Internet Computer Sessions 359             310            16% 2,100          2,771         -24%
Wireless Sessions 853             527            62% 4,465          3,770         18%

Page 26



Coopersville Area District Library
333 Ottawa St, Coopersville, MI 49404, USA

+1 (616) 837-6809
director@coopersvillelibrary.org

Pricing

Price Total price

Base Price for Solar
Based on a 27.47 kW installation

$81,036.50

Gross Cost $81,036.50 $81,036.50

Cost after rebates & incentives* $81,036.50 $81,036.50

*Note: Not everyone is eligible for credits, incentives, or rebates or can fully use them. Please consult your tax professional or legal professional for further
information.** Incentives are subject to change. The actual amount can be higher or lower than what is quoted, and may not stay at a fixed rate over time. It can also
change based on the tax bracket you are in.

Agathon Solar
14721 Cleveland Street, Spring Lake, MI, USA

Phone: (616) 888-0032
Email: grego@agathonsolar.com

CA
Initials

10

Page 27



Coopersville Area District Library
333 Ottawa St, Coopersville, MI 49404, USA

+1 (616) 837-6809
director@coopersvillelibrary.org

Usage breakdown

Estimated yearly cumulative savings

Assuming a 3.40% escalation rate on utility rate

En
er

gy
 (k

W
h)

Month
Production Your consumption Grid import

Consumption Offset

Estimated First Year Consumption

68,781.8 kWh

Estimated First Year Production

33,772.5 kWh

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

an
nu

al
 s

av
in

gs
 ($

1,
00

0)

Year

Agathon Solar
14721 Cleveland Street, Spring Lake, MI, USA

Phone: (616) 888-0032
Email: grego@agathonsolar.com

CA
Initials

14

49%

Page 28



Coopersville Area District Library
333 Ottawa St, Coopersville, MI 49404, USA

+1 (616) 837-6809
director@coopersvillelibrary.org

Net savings

Payback period
13.08 years

Return on investment (ROI)
5% per year

Levelised energy costs
$0.10

Utility savings $186,278.80

Incentive revenues $0.00

Tax benefits $0.00

Operating cost $0.00

Financial payments $81,036.50

Net savings $105,242.30

Agathon Solar
14721 Cleveland Street, Spring Lake, MI, USA

Phone: (616) 888-0032
Email: grego@agathonsolar.com

CA
Initials

15

Page 29



Coopersville Area District Library
333 Ottawa St, Coopersville, MI 49404, USA

+1 (616) 837-6809
director@coopersvillelibrary.org

Month-by-month details

Month (2024)
Utility
savings

Incentive
revenues

Operating
cost

Financial
payments

Tax benefits
Monthly
savings

January $171.04 $0.00 $0.00 $81,036.50 $0.00 -$80,865.46

February $270.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $270.49

March $435.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $435.96

April $553.06 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $553.06

May $644.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $644.49

June $644.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $644.63

July $665.85 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $665.85

August $590.59 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $590.59

September $480.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $480.97

October $344.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $344.23

November $211.08 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $211.08

December $181.84 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $181.84

Total $5,194.22 $0.00 $0.00 $81,036.50 $0.00 -$75,842.28

Production and Savings estimates are based on a period of 25 years by default. The length of the default project life can be updated for all projects by visiting the
Your Pricing section in the Company settings. To change the project life for this project, visit Utility section under Settings button at the top edge of this page.
Estimated production assumes equipment is maintained and free from damage or other impediments.
Estimated projected usage is based on your current utility bill.

Agathon Solar
14721 Cleveland Street, Spring Lake, MI, USA

Phone: (616) 888-0032
Email: grego@agathonsolar.com

CA
Initials

16

Page 30

file:///companies/16915/settings/life
file:///projects/2316746/utility


Coopersville Area District Library
333 Ottawa St, Coopersville, MI 49404, USA

+1 (616) 837-6809
director@coopersvillelibrary.org

Year-by-year details

Year Utility savings
Incentive
revenues

Operating
cost

Financial
payments

Tax benefits Annual savings

2024 $5,194.22 $0.00 $0.00 $81,036.50 $0.00 -$75,842.28

2025 $5,335.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,335.35

2026 $5,489.17 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,489.17

2027 $5,647.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,647.42

2028 $5,819.62 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,819.62

2029 $5,977.74 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,977.74

2030 $6,150.08 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,150.08

2031 $6,327.39 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,327.39

2032 $6,520.32 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,520.32

2033 $6,697.48 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,697.48

2034-2038 $36,509.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,509.30

2039-2043 $42,084.07 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42,084.07

2044-2048 $48,526.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,526.65

Total $186,278.80 $0.00 $0.00 $81,036.50 $0.00 $105,242.30

Agathon Solar
14721 Cleveland Street, Spring Lake, MI, USA

Phone: (616) 888-0032
Email: grego@agathonsolar.com

CA
Initials

17

Page 31



Coopersville Area District Library
333 Ottawa St, Coopersville, MI 49404, USA

+1 (616) 837-6809
director@coopersvillelibrary.org

Project timeline

Step Details Charge

Contract Signature Job file opened/centralize all information $40,518.25
(50%)

Material Procurement, Engineering, Site
Assessment

Follow up site visit (if needed), order lead time materials,
begin necessary engineering

Permits and Applications Zoning (if required), building, and electrical permits

Mobilization, Permits in Hand, Work Commenced Materials to site, installation commences $32,414.60
(40%)

Inspections / Commissioning Inspections completed, commission system $8,103.65 (10%)

Monitoring / Interconnection Provide access to system, walk through operation
(interconnection may still be in progress)

Agathon Solar
14721 Cleveland Street, Spring Lake, MI, USA

Phone: (616) 888-0032
Email: grego@agathonsolar.com

CA
Initials

18

Page 32



Coopersville Area District Library 
333 Ottawa Street 

Coopersville, Michigan 49404 
(616) 837-6809 telephone

(616) 837-7689 fax
______________________________________________________________________ 

March 20, 2024 

RECOMMENDATION FROM 
Director/Bookkeeper 

Subject: CoMerica Account Recommendation 

Background Information: CoMerica is closing many of their West Michigan branches. As one 
of the reasons for staying with CoMerica had been because they were a local bank, the director 
and bookkeeper went in search of banks that might get us a better rate. Choice One (already have 
a lot of money there) and Bloom Credit Union (does not have competitive rates) were eliminated 
for previously stated reasons. The director determined that the best rates are currently with 
Consumer’s Credit Union. 

Therefore, the director and bookkeeper recommend that we:  

(1) Add Consumer’s Credit Union as one of our preferred banking institutions
(2) Open a 12-month CD with them for the full amount that sits at CoMerica at the time of

withdrawal ($57,226.25 as of 3/12/24)
(3) Close the CoMerica account

Motion for Approval/Disapproval by 

Seconded by:  

Approved by Board:  YES  NO Date: 

Secretary’s Signature 

Page 33




